
 
AGENDA 

 
COUNTY OF KERN 

COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP (CCP) 
CCP FULL MEMBERSHIP (Referred to as “CCP”) 

CCP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Referred to as “Executive Committee”) 
 

5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 13, 2023 
 

8:30 A.M. 
 
 

 
 
CCP TO CONVENE 
 
CCP Members:  Chief William Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Tamarah Harber-Pickens (designee for 
Judge Bradshaw), District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer, Public Defender Peter Kang, Sheriff Donny 
Youngblood, Director Stacy Kuwahara, Police Chief Greg Terry, Administrator Ana Olvera, Director Lito 
Morillo, Executive Director Tom Corson, Supervisor Leticia Perez, Chief Workforce Development Officer 
Aaron Ellis, Superintendent John Mendiburu, Victim Services Coordinator Kayla Pinkston 
ROLL CALL: 
 
NOTE: COVID protection protocols will be followed in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local 
orders.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE 
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED 
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE 
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE 
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN.  STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN 
IN CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM. 
 
 
CA- 
1) Minutes from CCP Meeting of June 7, 2023 – APPROVE 
  

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code §54953.2) 

 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Community 
Corrections Partnership (CCP) or the CCP Executive Committee may request assistance at the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 868-4100. Every effort will be 
made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative 
formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
 

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review by contacting the office of the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California 93305 during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding County recognized holidays, following the posting of the agenda. 
The agenda is posted on-line at www.kernprobation.com. 



Agenda – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 2 
Regular Meeting  09/13/23 

 
2) Public Presentations 

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the CCP.  This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP 
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed.  They may ask a question for clarification and, through 
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at 
a later meeting.  SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES.  PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION.  THANK YOU 
 
 

3) Chairperson’s Report (Chief Dickinson)  
General update and/or information on AB 109 Realignment activities (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
MAKE PRESENTATION; NO ACTION REQUIRED 
 
 

4) CCP Committee Member Announcements or Reports  
CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities.  They 
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter 
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) – MAKE ANNOUNCEMENTS OR 
REPORTS 
 
Presentation by Employers’ Training Resource regarding paid work experience for AB 109 
participants (Fiscal Impact:  None) - MAKE PRESENTATION; NO ACTION REQUIRED 
 

CA- 
5) FY 2022-23 4th Quarter – Data Trackers  

Submission of data trackers for AB 109 funded departments/programs for FY 2022-23, April 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2023 (Fiscal Impact: None) – RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
 
6) Retroactive Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for Street Interdiction Team (SIT)  

Presentation by Chief Scott, Ridgecrest Police Department, for a new SIT MOU and authorize voiding 
Agreement #353-2012 and Amendments #082-2013, #460-2017, and #040-2020 (Fiscal Impact:  
None) – DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO VOID 
AGREEMENTS 353-2012, 082-2013, 460-2017, AND 040-2020 AND SUBMIT RETROACTIVE TO 
JULY 1, 2023 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR 
APPROVAL   

 
 
7) Assembly Bill 1080 Criminal Justice Realignment 

Presentation by County Administrative Office (CAO) to provide an overview of AB 1080 (Fiscal 
Impact:  None) - MAKE PRESENTATION; NO ACTION REQUIRED 
 
 

8) Authorization To Enter Into Emergency Personal/Professional Services Agreements (PPSA) for 
Sober-Living Environment Services to Alleviate Community-Based Organization (CBO) Waitlist  
Presentation by Lt. Jaime Hernandez, Sheriff’s Office, requesting emergency funding for contracted 
services to alleviate the current waitlist for sober-living environments (SLE) (Fiscal Impact: $429,000) 
– DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE AND 
AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENTER INTO PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS 
(PPSA) AS NEEDED 
 

  



Agenda – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 3 
Regular Meeting  09/13/23 

 
9) Carryforward Proposals of Unexpended/Carryforward FY 2022-23 AB 109 Funds 

Present and discuss proposals for carryforward of unexpended FY 2022-23 AB 109 funds as of June 
30, 2023 (Fiscal Impact: $4,407,220) – PRESENT PROPOSALS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE CARRYFORWARD AB 109 FUNDS REQUESTS 

 
a) Sheriff 

Request to carryforward Base Funds for the new Jail Management System and project 
management services (Fiscal Impact:  $1,636,696) – 
 

b) Probation 
Request to carryforward Base Funds for mobile data computers, building expansion and 
upgrades, and equipment tracking software (Fiscal Impact:  $386,123) – 
 

c) Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 
Request to carryforward Growth Funds to sustain operations of the Recovery Station (Fiscal 
Impact:  $1,500,000) – 

 
d) Employers’ Training Resource 

Request to carryforward Base Funds for personnel costs, additional participant training, travel, 
supportive services, and supplies (Fiscal Impact:  $316,848) – 
 

e) Street Interdiction Team 
Request to carryforward AB 109 Base Funds to increase the number of operations in FY 2023-
24 (Fiscal Impact:  $567,553) – 

 
 
10) Next CCP Meeting  
 

 Wednesday, December 13, 2023, 8:30 a.m. – DISCUSS; ANNOUNCE   
 
 
11) ADJOURN AS CCP 
 
 
 
CONVENE TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Executive Committee Members:  Chief Dickinson, Court Executive Officer Harber-Pickens (designee for 
Judge Bradshaw), District Attorney Zimmer, Public Defender Kang, Sheriff Youngblood, Director Kuwahara,  
Police Chief Terry 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 
1) Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting of June 7, 2023 – APPROVE 
 
 
2) Public Presentations 

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the Executive Committee.  This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to 
address the Executive Committee on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the 
Executive Committee.  Executive Committee members may respond briefly to statements made or 
questions posed.  They may ask a question for clarification and, through the Executive Committee, 
make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Executive 
Committee at a later meeting.  SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES.  PLEASE STATE 
AND SPELL YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD PRIOR TO MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION.  
THANK YOU. 

 



Agenda – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 4 
Regular Meeting  09/13/23 

 
3) Executive Committee Member Announcements or Reports  

Executive Committee members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s 
activities.  They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have 
staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) – MAKE 
ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
 

4) Retroactive Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for Street Interdiction Team (SIT)  
Discuss recommendation by full CCP for a new SIT MOU and authorize voiding Agreement #353-
2012 and Amendments #082-2013, #460-2017, and #040-2020) (Fiscal Impact:  None) – CONSIDER 
RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO SUBMIT RETROACTIVE TO 
JULY 1, 2023 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND REQUEST TO VOID PREVIOUS 
AGREEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS TO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL   

 
 

5) Authorization To Enter Into Emergency Personal/Professional Services Agreements (PPSA) for 
Sober-Living Environment Services to Alleviate Community-Based Organization (CBO) Waitlist  
Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding request for $429,000 to be placed in Community-
Based Organization (CBO) Program Contingency Fund to provide Sober-Living Environment 
Services to alleviate current waitlist (Fiscal Impact: $429,000) – CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION 
BY FULL CCP AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENTER INTO PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENTS (PPSA) AS NEEDED    
 
 

6) Carryforward Proposals of Unexpended/Carryforward FY 2022-23 AB 109 Funds 
Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding carryforward of unexpended FY 2022-23 AB 109 
funds as of June 30, 2023 (Fiscal Impact: $4,407,220) – CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION BY FULL 
CCP; APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE CHAIRPERSON TO SUBMIT CARRYFORWARD AB 109 
FUNDS REQUESTS TO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL 
 
a) Sheriff 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request to carryforward Base Funds (Fiscal 
Impact:  $1,636,696) – 
 

b) Probation 
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request to carryforward Base Funds (Fiscal 
Impact:  $386,123) – 
 

c) Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request to carryforward Growth Funds (Fiscal 
Impact:  $1,500,000) – 
 

d) Employers’ Training Resource 
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request to carryforward Base Funds (Fiscal 
Impact:  $316,848) – 

 
e) Street Interdiction Team 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request to carryforward Base Funds (Fiscal 
Impact:  $567,553) – 

 
 
7) Next Executive Committee Meeting 

 
 Wednesday, December 13, 2023, immediately following full CCP meeting – DISCUSS; 

ANNOUNCE 

 
8) ADJOURN AS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 



 
MINUTES 

 
COUNTY OF KERN 

COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP (CCP) 
CCP FULL MEMBERSHIP (Referred to as “CCP”) 

CCP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Referred to as “Executive Committee”) 
 

5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 7, 2023 
 

8:30 A.M. 
 
 

 
 
 
CCP Meeting called to order by Chief TR Merickel at 8:30 a.m. 
 
CCP Members:  Chief TR Merickel, Court Executive Officer Tamarah Harber-Pickens (designee for Judge 
Bradshaw), District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer, Public Defender Peter Kang, Sheriff Donny Youngblood, 
Director Stacy Kuwahara, Police Chief Greg Terry, Administrator Ana Olvera, Director Lito Morillo, 
Executive Director Tom Corson, Supervisor Leticia Perez, Interim Chief Workforce Development Officer 
Aaron Ellis, Superintendent Mary Barlow, Interim Victim Services Coordinator Kerri Dunlap 
 
 
ROLL CALL: All members present except for the following, Court Executive Officer Tamarah Harber-
Pickens, District Attorney Cynthia Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel for District Attorney Zimmer), Director Stacy 
Kuwahara (Michelle Culy for Director Kuwahara), Supervisor Leticia Perez, Superintendent Barlow (Debra 
Plank for Superintendent Barlow) 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH A “CA” ARE 
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL BY STAFF AND WILL BE APPROVED 
BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR PUBLIC WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK 
QUESTIONS.  IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE 
REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN THE LISTED SEQUENCE 
WITH AN OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN.  STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SHOWN 
IN CAPS AFTER EACH ITEM. 
 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code §54953.2) 

 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the Community 
Corrections Partnership (CCP) or the CCP Executive Committee may request assistance at the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California, or by calling (661) 868-4100. Every effort will be 
made to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative 
formats. Requests for assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
 

All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review by contacting the office of the Kern County 
Probation Department, 2005 Ridge Road, Bakersfield, California 93305 during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding County recognized holidays, following the posting of the agenda. 
The agenda is posted on-line at www.kernprobation.com. 



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 2 
Regular Meeting  06/07/23 

 
 
CA- 
1) Minutes from CCP Meeting of March 15, 2023  

 
MOTIONED TO APPROVE 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Corson-Olvera: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Harber-Pickens, Perez) 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

2) Public Presentations 
The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the CCP.  This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the CCP 
on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the CCP. CCP members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed.  They may ask a question for clarification and, through 
the CCP, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the CCP at 
a later meeting.  SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES.  PLEASE STATE AND SPELL 
YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD BEFORE MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION.  THANK YOU. 
-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE 
 
 

3) Chairperson’s Report (Chief Merickel)  
General update and/or information on AB 109 Realignment activities (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
 
CHIEF MERICKEL ANNOUNCED THAT CARRYOVER FUNDING WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE 
NEXT MEETING AND REMINDED THE COMMITTEE TO BE READY FOR DISCUSSION. 
 
CHIEF MERICKEL ANNOUNCED HE WILL BE RETIRING IN AUGUST, THUS THIS IS HIS LAST 
CCP MEETING, WHICH HE HAS BEEN INVOLVED WITH SINCE 2011 INCEPTION. HE THANKED 
EVERYONE. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CORSON SHARED SENTIMENTS FOR CHIEF MERICKEL 
ON HIS RETIREMENT. REBECCA VAUGHAN, PROBATON, SHARED SENTIMENTS AND 
PRESENTED CHIEF MERICKEL WITH A PLAQUE TO COMMEMORATE HIS SERVICE ON THE 
CCP. SHERIFF YOUNGBLOOD AND GURUJODHA KHALSA SHARED SENTIMENTS AND 
COMMENDED CHIEF MERICKEL FOR HIS WORK ON THE COMMITTEE AND FOR THE 
COMMUNITY. 
 
 

4) CCP Committee Member Announcements or Reports  
CCP members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s activities.  They 
may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a matter 
of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) 
-NO ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS MADE 

 
CA- 
5) FY 2022-23 3rd Quarter – Data Trackers  

Submission of data trackers for AB 109 funded departments/programs for FY 2022-23, January 1, 
2023, through March 31, 2023 (Fiscal Impact: None) –  
 
MOTIONED TO RECEIVE AND FILE 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Corson-Olvera: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Harber-Pickens, Perez) 
MOTION PASSED 

  



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 3 
Regular Meeting  06/07/23 

 
CA- 
6) Request to Amend Agreement #678-2022 with Bakersfield Recovery Services (BRS) 

Request approval of an amendment to revise authorized signer to execute Agreement #678-2022. 
(Fiscal Impact: None) –  
 
MOTIONED TO MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO AMEND 
AGREEMENT #678-2022 AND SUBMIT TO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Corson-Olvera: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Harber-Pickens, Perez) 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

7) Community- Based Organization (CBO) Annual Report, January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022 
Presentation by Lt. Alex Garcia, Sheriff’s Office, regarding the CY 2022 Community-Based 
Organization (CBO) annual report for January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022 (Fiscal Impact: 
None) –  
 
MOTIONED TO RECEIVE AND FILE 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Kinzel-Murillo: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Harber-Pickens, Perez) 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 

8) County of Kern Public Safety Act Implementation Plan and Allocations for FY 2023-24 
Discuss County of Kern Public Realignment Act Implementation Plan and allocation request for FY 
2023-24 (Fiscal Impact: $61,716,806 Base) –  
 
 

Department/Organization Percentages 
Requested 
Allocation 

Sheriff 39.27% $24,236,190 
Probation 35.56% $21,946,496 
Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 13.56% $8,368,799 
District Attorney 4.28% $2,641,479 
Community-Based Organizations (CBO) Program 2.73% $1,684,869 
Public Defender 2.14% $1,320,740 
Employers’ Training Resource 1.38% $851,692 
Street Interdiction Team 0.68% $419,674 
Veterans Service 0.27% $166,635 
Contingency 0.13% $80,232 

Total Requested 100.00% $61,716,806 
Total Available  $61,716,806 

 
a) Sheriff 

Request funds to maintain staffing and service levels, facility improvements, fleet 
replacement, acquisition of a drone and canine, and training (Fiscal Impact: $24,236,190) –
PRESENTATION MADE 

 
b) Probation 

Request funds for staffing and expansion of services at the Day Reporting Center  
(Fiscal Impact: $21,946,496) – PRESENTATION MADE 

 



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 4 
Regular Meeting  06/07/23 

 
c) Behavioral Health & Recovery Services  

Request funds for staffing and program costs (Fiscal Impact: $8,368,799) –  
PRESENTATION MADE 

 
d) District Attorney 

Request funds to maintain current staffing and service levels (Fiscal Impact: $2,641,479) – 
PRESENTATION MADE 
 

e) Community-Based Organizations (CBO’s) 
Request funds for a future CBO Program RFP to provide community-based services for AB 
109 individuals (Fiscal Impact: $1,684,869) – PRESENTATION MADE 
 

f) Public Defender 
Request funds for staffing and rehabilitative services for adult felony offenders  
(Fiscal Impact: $1,320,740) – PRESENTATION MADE 

 
g) Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) 

Request funds for staffing, supportive services, and participant training  
(Fiscal Impact: $851,692) – PRESENTATION MADE 

 
h) Street Interdiction Team (SIT) 

Request funds for multi-departmental regional law enforcement task force operations  
(Fiscal Impact: $419,674) – PRESENTATION MADE 
 

i) Veterans Service Department 
Request for funds to staff (1) Veterans Service Representative assigned to the Veterans 
Service Department to work with AB 109 offenders, supplies, and video conferencing 
licensing to work with justice-involved veterans and their families (Fiscal Impact: $166,635) 
– PRESENTATION MADE 
 

j) Contingency 
Request funds for unexpected expenses and/or additional items the CCP chooses to fund 
(Fiscal Impact: $80,232) – PRESENTATION MADE 
 

MOTIONED TO RECOMMEND TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE FY 2023-24 
ALLOCATION REQUESTS AS PRESENTED 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Merickel – Yes; Harber-Pickens – Absent; Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel for 
Zimmer) – Yes; Kang – Yes; Youngblood – Yes; Kuwahara (Michelle Culy for Kuwahara) – Yes; 
Terry – Yes; Olvera – Yes; Morillo – Yes; Corson – Yes; Perez – Absent; Ellis– Yes; Barlow 
(Debra Plank for Barlow) – Yes; Dunlap – Yes 
Ellis-Corson: 12 – Ayes; 2 – Absent (Harber-Pickens, Perez) 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 
9)  Next CCP Meeting  
 

 Wednesday, September 13, 2023, at the Probation Office, 5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite 
#100, Bakersfield - ANNOUNCED 

 
 

10) ADJOURNED AS CCP AT 8:54 a.m. 
  



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 5 
Regular Meeting  06/07/23 

 
CONVENE TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AT 8:56 A.M. 

 
Executive Committee Members:  Chief Merickel, Court Executive Officer Harber-Pickens (designee for Judge 
Bradshaw), District Attorney Zimmer, Public Defender Kang, Sheriff Youngblood, Director Kuwahara, Chief 
Terry 
 
ROLL CALL: All members present except for the following, Court Executive Officer Harber-Pickens 
(designee for Judge Bradshaw), District Attorney Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel for District Attorney Zimmer), 
Director Kuwahara (Michelle Culy for Director Kuwahara) 
 
CA- 
1) Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting of March 15, 2023 
 

MOTIONED TO APPROVE 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Youngblood-Kinzel: 6 – Ayes, 1 – Absent (Harber-Pickens) 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 
2) Public Presentations 

The public is provided the opportunity to comment on agenda items at the time those agenda items 
are discussed by the Executive Committee.  This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to 
address the Executive Committee on any matter not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the 
Executive Committee.  Executive Committee members may respond briefly to statements made or 
questions posed.  They may ask a question for clarification and, through the Executive Committee, 
make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report back to the Executive 
Committee at a later meeting.  SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO MINUTES.  PLEASE STATE 
AND SPELL YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD PRIOR TO MAKING YOUR PRESENTATION.  
THANK YOU. 
-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE 

 
 

3) Executive Committee Member Announcements or Reports  
Executive Committee members may make an announcement or a report on their own department’s 
activities.  They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have 
staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code § 54954.2[a]) 
-NO PRESENTATIONS MADE 
 

CA- 
4) Request to Amend Agreement #678-2022 with Bakersfield Recovery Services (BRS) 

Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding request to amend Agreement #678-2022 (Fiscal 
Impact: None) –  
 
MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO AMEND AGREEMENT AND 
SUBMIT TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
Youngblood-Kinzel: 6 – Ayes, 1 – Absent (Harber-Pickens) 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

5) County of Kern Public Safety Act Implementation Plan and Allocations for FY 2023-24 
Discuss recommendation by full CCP regarding County of Kern Public Realignment Act 
Implementation Plan and allocation requests for FY 2023-24 (Fiscal Impact: $61,716,806 Base) –  
 



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 6 
Regular Meeting  06/07/23 

 

Department/Organization Percentages 
Requested 
Allocation 

Sheriff 39.27% $24,236,190 
Probation 35.56% $21,946,496 
Behavioral Health & Recovery Services 13.56% $8,368,799 
District Attorney 4.28% $2,641,479 
Community-Based Organizations (CBO) Program 2.73% $1,684,869 
Public Defender 2.14% $1,320,740 
Employers’ Training Resource 1.38% $851,692 
Street Interdiction Team 0.68% $419,674 
Veterans Service 0.27% $166,635 
Contingency 0.13% $80,232 

Total Requested 100.00% $61,716,806 
Total Available  $61,716,806 

 
a) Sheriff 
 Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds 
 (Fiscal Impact: $24,236,190) 
 
b) Probation 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $21,946,496) 

 
c) Behavioral Health & Recovery Services  

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $8,368,799) 

 
d) District Attorney 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $2,641,479) 
 

e) Community-Based Organizations (CBO’s) 
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $1,684,869) 
 

f) Public Defender 
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $1,320,740) 

 
g) Employers’ Training Resource (ETR) 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds 
(Fiscal Impact: $851,692)  

 
h) Street Interdiction Team (SIT) 

Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $419,674) 
  

i) Veterans Service Department 
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $166,635) 

  



Minutes – Community Corrections Partnership  Page 7 
Regular Meeting  06/07/23 

 
 

j) Contingency 
Consider recommendation by full CCP regarding request for funds  
(Fiscal Impact: $80,232) 

 
MOTIONED TO APPROVE RECOMMENDATION BY FULL CCP TO APPROVE FY 2023-24 
ALLOCATION REQUESTS AS PRESENTED 
Public Comment: 
NO ONE HEARD 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Merickel – Yes; Harber-Pickens – Absent; Zimmer (Joseph Kinzel for 
Zimmer) – Yes; Kang – Yes; Youngblood – Yes; Kuwahara (Michelle Culy for Kuwahara) – Yes, 
Terry– Yes  
Terry-Kinzel: 6 – Ayes, 1 – Absent (Harber-Pickens) 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 

5) Next Executive Committee Meeting 
 
 Wednesday, September 13, 2023, immediately following full CCP meeting, at the Probation 

Office, 5121 Stockdale Highway, Suite #100, Bakersfield - ANNOUNCED 
 

 
6) ADJOURNED AS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AT 8:58 A.M. 

 



Apr May Jun

Jail Beds Saved:
PRCS 206 168 197

Change in Total
Jail Incidents:

EMP Releases 97
FLASH 7 9 8

Part I FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 22/22 FY 22/23

Assaults on Staff 1 2
Work Release 343  PC 3056 90 Homicide 16 17 6%

Inmate Fights 226 201

NNN 13 10 25 Rape 33 62 88%
Safety Cell Usage 91 79

Burglary 519 421 -19%
Crimes in Jail 0 1

Month  EMP W/R Total GTA 811 777 -4%
April 108 264 372 Suicide Watch 350 351
May 104 306 410 Robbery 120 146 22%
June 107 286 393 EID Device 0 3

Total: 319 856 1,175 Part II FY 21/22 FY 22/23

Drug Testing Apr May Jun Narcotics 396 358 -10%

7 6 4 1,692

11 16 7 Loitering 11 31 182% 2,004

Vandalism 608 680 12%

Inmates Participating 65

55 44

246 $4,379

3

383 with Violent Charges Reduced Child Support $
i.e. Murder, Kidnapping, Car Jacking, Sexual

Graduation is set for the  

next quarter.
- Home, Field, Office, Phone  Battery, Crimes Against Children & Assault Genetic Tests Conducted

72 Worksites/315 Workers 
Child Support Services

10 participants graduated in  

the month of April. Co-Response Team

 Active Caseload Inquiries Received from Inmates
Cohort 33 began with 18  

participants enrolled.
921 Gang Members In Custody

Contact Made  

FY 2021/2022

      Gang Members:
FY 2022/2023

Work Release Total Revenue:

$ 42,200.84    

% of Change: 18 %

Updates from the Lerdo Jail...

Average Daily Population 1,618

Total County Jail Beds 1,848 % Change

Fed Caps

Sheriff Reported Crimes:

% Change

  98 Referred to Employers' Training Resource

355 Completed a Virtual Custody Program

Jail Population/Demographics

Active Participants 
Average Daily Arrests 72

Kern County Sheriff Data Trackers 
FY 22/23 - 4th Quarter (April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023)

Virtual Jail Arrest Stats Crime Stats Jail Incidents

35,195

10 % Female90 % Male

Gang  
AB109  

Gang    
Non- AB109

Non-Gang Member

-7.8 %

17.19%

35.21%

47.6%

57 %
Negative

Positive

11594



 Post Release Community Supervision Mandatory Supervision
19% 13%

Kern County Probation Department
"Commitment to a Safe Community"

Recidivism 
A subsequent criminal adjudication/conviction while on probation supervision.

Successful Reintegration into the Community

Commitment to a Safer Community

Day Reporting Center (DRC) Adult Program Centers

Community Service Hours Participants Enrolled Aftercare

AB 109 DATA TRACKERS
DASHBOARD REPORT
FY 22/23 - 4th Quarter

April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023

84 610,853

During the quarter, officers assigned to the Kern County Probation Department’s Post
Release Community Supervision (PRCS) unit conducted a home call in the 400 block of
Beech Street in Bakersfield to contact a 40-year-old male active on PRCS. Upon arrival, the
subject ran from officers and was apprehended after a brief foot pursuit. During the
residence search, officers confiscated a loaded semiautomatic handgun, live ammunition,
and suspected methamphetamine and cocaine. He was arrested for firearm, ammunition,
drug related charges, and resisting arrest.

6%

13%

6%

16%

58%

11%
14%

10%

35%

29%
26%

31%

6%

13%

24%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Low Mod High Drug High Prop High Viol

Static Risk Assessment (SRA) Offender's Risk to Recidivate 

PRCS

MS

FP

Program Services:
• Effective Practices in Community Supervision (EPICS) • Thinking for a Change (T4C)

• Moral Reconation Therapy (MRT) • Aggression Replacement Training (ART)

1

23

6
13

63

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

LOW MOD HIGH DRUG HIGH PROP HIGH VIOL

Total Enrolled into APC by SRA

8 3

97

0

20

40

60

80

100

FELONY MS PRCS

Total Enrolled into APC by Supervision Program Services:
• Abuse Testing • Aftercare • Alcohol/Substance • Anger Management • Assessment • Behavior

Change Plan • Budgeting/Money Management • Cognitive/Life Skills • Daily Check-In • 
Discharge Planning • Domestic Violence • Educational Services • Gender Responsive  

Trauma • Job Readiness/Search • Parenting/Family • Referrals •

Post Release
Community Supervision

2,067

Mandatory 
Supervision

660

Felony 
Probation

6,896

Total

9,623

During the quarter, a 38-year-old female with a lengthy criminal history, successfully
completed her Post Release Community Supervision (PRCS). Under the supervision of the
Kern County Probation Department, she was referred to the Day Reporting Center (DRC)
by her probation officer. She attended all scheduled meetings and always greeted the DRC
staff with a smile. After she completed PRCS, she chose to remain active in the program
and continue participation in the DRC program. She credits this program with helping her
learn to communicate more effectively with her family and peers and maintain her sobriety
for nearly one year. Since then, she has graduated from the DRC program, enrolled at the
Bakersfield Adult School, and has started the culinary training program through the
Bakersfield Navigation Center.



 

  

103

292

36 68
113

299

565

48
131

188

MH and SUD Clients Served by Probation Status

MH SUD

Services  
Supporting 
Reintegration: 

Evidence Based 
Practices and 
Strategies  

Substance Use 
Disorder 
Treatment 

Case 
Management 

Psychiatric and 
Medication 
Services 

Trauma 
Informed 
Services 

Linkage to 
Community 
Resources 

Individual and 
Group 
Counseling 

Training 

Incarceration Hosp Homeless

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000 7,120

722

5,979

1,920

516
1,823

MH Data and Outcomes (n=63)

Prior 12 months Since Treatment

1

10

100
19

4

270 406

0 0 0 0

SUD Data and Outcomes (n=14 prior Tx; n=0 since Tx)

Prior 3 months Since Treatment

4
2

5
3

0
0
1

5
12

7
52

0 20 40 60

CWIC Admissions
Homeless

Incarceration
PEC Admission

MET Calls
Discharged

Hospitalizations
Incoming Transfer

LPS Conserved
After-Hour Calls

Client Census

Mental Health Systems TURN

44

8

277

1

5

1

1

0 100 200 300

#UNIQUE INDIVIDUALS SERVED

# NEW CLIENTS:  

# SERVICES PROVIDED  

# MH ASSESSMENTS:

# REMANDED:

# 5150S: 

# PSYCH HOSPITALIZATIONS:  

Co-Response Teams 2022-23: AB109s & High Utilizers Success Story 
An individual who was incarcerated at the Lerdo Detentions 
Facility, entered the RSAT program. Over the years, they had 
several admissions with correctional mental health, crisis 
services, and substance use disorder treatment. The individual 
wanted to make a life change, so they entered the in-custody 
treatment program, RSAT. They successfully completed the 
Treatment program and, upon release, followed through with 
referrals from the SUD Access Line. The Individual is currently 
active in their recovery and is attending substance use 
treatment services while maintaining stable housing and full-
time employment. 



1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

231  252  154  121  

179  108  126  52   

266  200  208  222  

747  602  704  399  

2,076  1,898  2,169   2,919  

1,052  938  1,282   851  

1,520  1,159  2,471   2,980  

2,964  2,336  2,914   2,030  

375  380  290  531

136  137  214  147

220  277  161  214

383  314  276  203

218  110  280  177  

128  88   113  83   

294  201  297  266  

441  412  420  406  

230  140  97  108  

64   61   52  58   

180  137  150  429  

355  286  338  290  

245  232  612  219

114  76   86  79

117  158  248  214

362  320  412  216

3,375  3,012  3,602   4,075  

1,673  1,408  1,873   1,270  

2,597  2,132  3,535   4,325  

5,252  4,270  5,064   3,544  

6,925  5,678    6,937   4,814 

Branch Type

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
AB 109 DATA TRACKERS

DASHBOARD REPORT
FY 22/23 - 4th Quarter

April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023

Bakersfield

Requests - Felony

Filings - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Arvin/Lamont

Requests - Felony

Filings - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Mojave

Requests - Felony

Filings - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Delano

Requests - Felony

Filings - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Total Filings

Ridgecrest

Requests - Felony

Filings - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Shafter

Requests - Felony

Filings - Felony

Requests - Misdemeanor

Filings - Misdemeanor

Totals
Felony Requests

Felony Filings

Misdemeanor Requests

Misdemeanor Filings

1,666 

1,483 

1,874 

1,270 1,270 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

3,000 

FY   18/19    4th Qtr FY    19/20    4th Qtr FY    20/21 4th Qtr FY    21/22 4th Qtr FY    22/23 4th Qtr 

Felony Filings 

5,261 

4,310 

6,676 

4,814 4,814 

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

FY   18/19    4th Qtr FY    19/20    4th Qtr FY    20/21 4th Qtr FY    21/22 4th Qtr FY    22/23 4th Qtr 

Total Filings 



Third Tradition recently had one of their first AB109 participants complete the 6-month program. The participant worked hard and earned gainful employment. She is excelling in her new 
workplace and has even been asked to help train new employees. She has now moved into their traditional housing and sober living facilities, is able to pay her own program fees, and is 
passing all her drug tests. Third Tradition is thankful to have been a part of her journey and looks forward to seeing her succeed. 

COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS (CBO's)
AB 109 Data Trackers Report 

FY 22/23 - 4th Quarter (CBO 2nd Quarter*) April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023

Success Story

11

9

4

22

0

11

9

3

18

24

26

21

8

32

14

17

8

7

0

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

BRS

Freedom House

Garden Pathways

Minnie Marvels

New Life

STEPS

One Door

Cottage of Hope

Third Tradition

WestCare Sheriff

Probation

Enrollments

$981,247

$1,272,575

$840,186

$363,293

$1,655,966

$214,141
$261,087

$620,531

$355,498
$264,348

$0

$250,000

$500,000

$750,000

$1,000,000

$1,250,000

$1,500,000

BRS Freedom
House

Garden
Pathways

Minnie
Marvels

New Life STEPS One Door Cottage of
Hope

Third
Tradition

WestCare

Funding

Remaining

Expended

Sober 
Living

0% Mentoring
19%

DUI 
Education

42%

Case 
Management

39%

Participants by 
Contract Type

234

37

91

0

50

100

150

200

250

1

Service Participation by 
SLE Clients

*Clients may be counted more than once

Treatment

Education

Employment

56%

81%

87%

78%

73%

83%

77%

68%

71%

70%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

BRS

Freedom House

Garden Pathways

Minnie Marvels

New Life

STEPS

One Door

Cottage of Hope

Third Tradition

WestCare

Retention Rate



1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

2,039 1,395 1,496 1,938

1,743 1,492 1,764 2,213

248 320 321 291

113 84 88 83

294 267 298 329

175 108 127 136

275 228 246 320

193 164 229 238

348 256 294 295

163 111 132 128

379 279 336 386

238 181 195 206

467 362 407 446

2,921   2,043   2,267   2,729   

3,506   2,884   3,345   3,989   

248   320   321   291   

6,675   5,247   5,933   7,009   

Total

Felony

Misdemeanor

Violations

TOTAL Total Assignments

Shafter
Felony

Misdemeanor

Lamont, Arvin, & 
Taft

Felony

Misdemeanor

Mojave
Felony

Misdemeanor

Delano / Prison 
Court

Felony

Misdemeanor

Bakersfield

Felony

Misdemeanor

Violation

Ridgecrest & Kern 
River

Felony

Misdemeanor

     PUBLIC DEFENDER
 AB 109 DATA TRACKERS
     FY 22/23 - 4th Quarter

 April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023

BRANCH Assignments

2,400 2,285 2,469
2,829 2,729

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

FY 18/19
4th Qtr

FY 19/20
4th Qtr

FY 20/21
4th Qtr

FY 21/22
4th Qtr

FY 22/23
4th Qtr

Felony Assignments

6,474
5,959 5,978

6,207

7,009

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

FY 18/19
4th Qtr

FY 19/20
4th Qtr

FY 20/21
4th Qtr

FY 21/22
4th Qtr

FY 22/23
4th Qtr

Total Assignments



AB 109 Data Trackers
Dashboard Report

Employers' Training Resource
America's Job Center of California

FY 22-23 - 4th Quarter _
OcApr 1, 2023 - Jun 30, 2023  

Success Stories Post-Custody Positive 
Steps Class

27

Employment or 
Training Placements

7

27

Number of GED 
Module Tests Taken

130

Net Referrals (Total minus Declined Referrals)

Number Enrolled by Offender Classification

Enrollments by GenderMedian Age

33
Education Level of Enrolled Enrollments

Completed Lerdo Job 
Readiness Class

23 of 27

A client wanted to get into our welding program but was unable to because of lacking a
high school diploma/GED. The client, on her own initiative, with encouragement and a
nudge in the right direction from staff, made it into the last testing of the year and
enrolled in classes with KHSD. She's studying for her GED and job searching
simultaneously. When she's done, she'll be able to go into welding. This quarter we've
enrolled 40% of our Felony Probation referrals, 60% of those on Mandatory Supervision,
8.8% of those on Post Release Community Supervision and 3.2% of those on Electronic
Monitoring. PWEX scheduled to begin in August, which will increase opportunities for
enrolled clients to earn a wage while developing vocational and prosocial work behavior
in preparation for unsubsidized employment.

211

42

11

0 2

71

2 2 0 0
4

8
4

0 0

15

0 0 0 0
5

35

0 0 0 02

12

0
3

10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

EMP Felony Prob. Lerdo Mandatory Sup. PRCS

Did Not Report
No Show (Missed Appt.)
Missing I9s
Already Employed at Referral
Client Refused Services (Declined Referral)
Scheduled for Positive Steps

Male
21 

Female
6

2

12

0

3

10

EMP

Felony Probation

Lerdo

Mandatory Supervision

PRCS

0 5 10 15



SIT Participating Agencies 
Assigned 
Personnel

Arvin Police Department 8

Bakersfield Police Department 82

Bear Valley Springs Police Department 0

California City Police Department 0

Delano Police Department 3

Kern County District Attorney 1

Kern County Probation Department 54

Kern County Sheriff's Office 0

Kern High School District 0

McFarland Police Department 45

Ridgecrest Police Department 18

Shafter Police Department 0

Stallion Springs Police Department 0

Taft Police Department 0

Tehachapi Police Department 0

Other: Parole 7

Other: Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) 37

TOTAL PERSONNEL 255

Narcotics 1,369.20

Narcotics (Pills) 0

Weapons Seized 14

Currency Seized During Operations 0.00 

Vehicles Impounds 12 

Number of Operations 6

Number of Locations 3

Number of Days 9

Number of Agencies 33

Locations: Bakersfield, McFarland, Ridgecrest 

Operations

Target Summary

Total Arrests

Seized Items

April 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023

STREET INTERDICTION TEAM (SIT) OPERATIONS
AB 109 DATA TRACKERS

DASHBOARD REPORT
FY 22/23 - 4th Quarter

218

41
48

15

150

19

0

50

100

150

200

250

3

0

40

31

Probation Violations

Flash Incarceration

Misdemeanor Arrests (Open
Charges)

Felony Arrests (Open
Charges)

gms

$

Planned
Targets 

Targets
Attempted 

Targets
Located 

Contacts w/ 
Non-Targets

Searches Narcotics 
Violations



 

AB 109 DATA TRACKERS REPORT FY 22-23 
QUARTER 4 (APR 1, 2023 - JUN 30, 2023) 

Services Provided to Support 
Reintegration and Reduce 
Recidivism: 

 Service-Connected Disability
 Apportionment
 Pension
 Medical
 Vocational Rehabilitation
 Housing Assistance
 CalVet Tuition Waiver for

Dependents 
 Benefit Reinstatement
 Overpayment Assistance
 Service Provider Referrals

The Kern County Veterans Service Department (KCVSD) has a dedicated Veterans Service 
Representative (VSR) designated to provide benefit advocacy and case management to veterans 
(and their families) at any stage in the criminal justice system.  The initiative provides access to 
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) benefits, California Department of Veterans Affairs benefits, 
as well as referrals to other community groups in an effort to eliminate barriers to successful 
reintegration into the community and reduce the recidivism rate of veteran offenders. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Total

Kern County Veterans Service Department
Veteran Contacts New Benefits Apportionment Housing

Benefit Reinstatement Medical Voc-Rehab Dependent Tuition Waiver

KCVSD has established a direct line of communication to incarcerated veterans via Kern Valley State Prison 
psychologists; this provides an opportunity to assist these incarcerated veterans by filing claims related to 
psychological trauma suffered during their time in service.  Staff and inmates have the means of 
communicating through Zoom on tablets provided by the state prison.  Future goals of KCVSD is to develop 
similar connections within other institutions throughout Kern County. 



TO: 

FROM: 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) 

Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/ 
Executive Committee 
Clo Kern County Probation Department 
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309 
Bakersfield, CA 93385 

Chief Michael Scott, Interim Chief of Police 
Ridgecrest Police Department 

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections Partnership 
(CCP) at the meeting of September 13, 2023: 

Title: 

Background: 

PROPOSED RETROACTIVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR 
STREET INTERDICTION TEAM (SIT) AND AUTHORIZE VOIDING 
AGREEMENT #353-2012 AND AMENDMENTS #082-2013, #460-2017, AND 
#040-2020 

SIT is requesting the original MOU and amendments to be combined under one 
contract, thus voiding the previous agreement. The following revisions include: 

• All law enforcement agencies and personnel are eligible to
participate in SIT.

• Overtime and/or paid additional hours in support of SIT
operations are reimbursable.

• Fiscal Training is mandatory once a year.
• Certain invoice documents have a specified due date.
• Added Wasco Police Department (previously under Kern County

Sheriff's Office).

Fiscal Impact: 

Recommendation/ 
Action to be Taken: 

None 

DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO 
VOID AGREEMENT #353-2012 AND AMENDMENTS #082-2013, #460-2017, 
AND #040-2020 AND SUBMIT MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL 

Chief Michael Scott, Interim Chief of Police 
Ridgecrest Police Department 



Page 1 of 8 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR PARTICIPATING AGENCIES  
TO OPERATE AS THE STREET INTERDICTION TEAM (“SIT”) FOR  

ACTIVITIES RELATED TO ASSEMBLY BILL 109 
 
This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) is made and entered into on ______________________, 
(“EXECUTION DATE”) by and between the participating agencies of the Street Interdiction Team (“SIT”) and the 
COUNTY OF KERN (“COUNTY”), a political subdivision of the State of California. COUNTY and participating 
agencies of SIT may be individually referred to as “PARTY” and collectively as “PARTIES.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
A. The Board of Supervisors approved the first County of Kern, Public Safety Realignment Act of 2011 

Implementation Plan on October 25, 2011, pursuant to Assembly Bill 109 (“AB 109”), Public Safety 
Realignment Act of 2011 signed into law on April 4, 2011, and Penal Code 1230.1, as proposed by the 
Kern County Community Corrections Partnership (“CCP”); and 
 

B. The CCP determined that there will be a potential increase in street-level crime throughout Kern County 
as a result of the Realignment; and 
 

C. SIT, established in 2007, is a multi-jurisdictional county-wide task force comprised of local, State, and 
Federal law enforcement agencies with a mission to disrupt, dismantle, and interdict local gang, narcotic, 
and street crime activity in Kern County communities; and 
 

D. SIT operations as it pertains to AB 109, were approved as part of the Implementation Plan to combat the 
potential increase in street-level crime as a result of the Realignment; and 
 

E. These operations will be in addition to, and separate from, existing SIT actions; and  
 

F. SIT was allocated funding which will provide regional law enforcement agencies needed additional 
resources and address public safety concerns for the citizens of Kern County due to the Realignment; 
and 
 

G. Participating SIT agencies listed in Section 4 desire to support and further the goals and objectives of AB 
109 implementation by entering into this MOU; and  

 
H. The Probation Department was designated by the Board of Supervisors on August 2, 2011, as the 

supervising agency for AB 109 related activities, and the Realignment Implementation Plan indicates that 
the Probation Department would manage SIT funds allocated for this purpose as operations occur; and 
 



Page 2 of 8 

 

I. The PARTIES agree Kern Chiefs will appoint a Chief from a participating agency as the Chairperson to 
oversee the activities of SIT; and 
 

J. The PARTIES agree SIT operations shall be comprised of a hosting agency and a minimum of one other 
participating law enforcement agency; and  
 

K. The PARTIES agree to further define SIT deployment and operational plan requirements; and 
 

L. The PARTIES agree to clarify invoicing and reimbursement requirements as stated in Section 3; and 
 

M. The PARTIES agree SIT resources may be utilized during a critical incident; and 
 

N. The PARTIES agree all Kern County law enforcement agencies and certain participating agencies 
assisting in SIT operations may participate in SIT; and  
 

O. The PARTIES agree this MOU supersedes prior agreements.  All MOUs and amendments prior to this 
agreement are invalid; and 
 

P. PARTIES entered into Agreement No. 353-2012 dated June 5, 2012, which is on file with the Clerk of the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Kern. The PARTIES agree that the terms and conditions in prior 
Agreement No. 353-2012 and amendments are incorporated within this MOU, thus voiding the following:   

• Agreement No. 353-2012, approved on June 5, 2012 
• Amendment #1, Agreement No. 082-2013, approved on February 12, 2013 
• Amendment #2, Agreement No. 460-2017, approved on August 8, 2017 
• Amendment #3, Agreement No. 040-2020, approved on January 28, 2020 

 
Q. The PARTIES agree future amendments to the MOU shall be presented and approved by the Community 

Corrections Partnership prior to submission to the Board of Supervisors; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES mutually agree hereto as follows: 
 

1. TERM  
 
The term of this MOU shall be deemed effective as of July 1, 2023. This MOU may be modified by mutual 
agreement of the PARTIES at any time. Any individual PARTY may withdraw or terminate their 
participation in this MOU with a 30-day written notice submitted to the COUNTY; however, should the 
COUNTY wish to terminate this MOU, then the entire MOU is considered terminated upon 30-day written 
notice to all PARTIES signed herein. 
 

2. ACTIVITIES OF SIT AS IT PERTAINS TO AB 109 REALIGNMENT 
 
A. Kern Chiefs will appoint a Chief from a participating agency as the Chairperson to oversee SIT 

activities. The duties of the Chairperson include, but are not limited to, leading monthly SIT 
meetings, approving SIT deployment/operational plans, and making presentations as necessary. 



Page 3 of 8 

 

 
B. SIT operations shall be comprised of a hosting agency and a minimum of one other participating 

law enforcement agency. The hosting agency does not have the authority to dictate or choose the 
agencies that will participate within a SIT operation.  All approved plans shall be distributed to all 
SIT participating agencies. 
 

C. A hosting agency will be selected for each operation. The hosting agency is responsible for the 
deployment/operational plan respective to their area. 
 

D. SIT shall conduct operations in various areas and locations throughout Kern County depending 
on the highest degree of AB 109 activities and resources available. The hosting agency will 
determine locations, dates, times, and teams as mutually agreed upon by all participating 
agencies. 
 

E. SIT operations under this MOU will be in addition to, and separate from, existing SIT actions and 
specifically related to AB 109 activities. 
 

3. DOCUMENTATION, FUNDING AND REIMBURSEMENT 
 
SIT participating agencies understand and agree to the following: 
 
A. The Kern County Probation Department will be the fiscal agent for the SIT operations as it pertains 

to AB 109 pursuant to the County of Kern 2011 Public Safety Realignment Implementation Plan 
and Board of Supervisors approval.  

 
B. The Kern County Probation Department shall provide a list of potential AB 109 targets for 

participating agencies. 
 

C. Deployment/operational plans must be approved by the SIT Chairperson and endorsed by the 
Kern County Probation Department for a minimum of thirty (30) days in advance of a prospective 
SIT operation unless prior authorization is granted. Amendments to deployment/operational plans 
must be approved a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours prior to a SIT Operation. 
 

D. Deployment/operational plans must be submitted in the format approved by the Chairperson and 
must contain the following information: 
i. Contact information of the operation supervisor 
ii. Operational details including the date, time, and location 
iii. Number of Pre-Screened Targets 
iv. Number of participating officers/deputies requested 
v. Other information as requested such as specifying radio channel frequencies within SIT 

operation briefings. 
 

 



Page 4 of 8 

 

E. All necessary, required, and proper documentation must be provided to support the AB 109 
operations including but not limited to timecards/sheets, invoices, billings, data, statistical 
information, outcomes, operational plans, and reports, to the Kern County Probation Department. 
Sign-In Sheets and Data Forms completed by the hosting agency must be submitted within one 
week after the date of SIT operation. 
 

F. SIT participating agencies agree to attend an annual mandatory fiscal training generally in July, 
August, or September.     

 
G. SIT participating agencies agree to submit completed invoices within thirty (30) days immediately 

following a SIT operation. Invoices not submitted within sixty (60) days of the day immediately 
following a SIT operation will not be reimbursed, unless given prior authorization by the Kern 
County Probation Department. 
 

H. Participating agencies must provide the hosting agency with a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours’ 
notice of the number of personnel intending to participate in a SIT operation. Reimbursement of 
law enforcement personnel from participating agencies is limited to the number of participating 
officers/deputies requested in the approved deployment/operation plan. 
 

I. Law enforcement personnel joining a SIT operation are eligible for reimbursement from their time 
of arrival to the end of their SIT operation duties. 

 
J. Law enforcement personnel that are held over due to incidents occurring during the SIT operation 

and were assigned to and participated in the entirety of a SIT operation are eligible for 
reimbursement until relieved. 

 
K. All personnel, including but not limited to Officers, Deputies, Dispatchers, Jailers, Community 

Service Officers, Probation Technicians, Reserves, and Clerical support staff working on overtime 
and/or paid additional hours to support SIT operations are eligible for reimbursement. 
 

L. Law enforcement costs such as supplies, equipment, vehicles, etc. are NOT eligible for AB 109 
reimbursement under this MOU and shall be the responsibility of the respective participating 
agencies. 

 
M. Exclusions from the SIT reimbursement include comp time earned and hours worked during 

regular shift schedules. 
 

N. Participating agencies understand that SIT funding is subject to COUNTY and State budget 
activities and funding could be eliminated or reduced at any time. By signing this MOU, SIT 
participating agencies agree that regardless of any claim(s) for reimbursement of SIT operation 
expenses, the amount to be paid is subject to the balance of AB 109 funds available at any given 
time for SIT operations. Any claims in excess of amounts available are the responsibility of the 
requesting agency and not the COUNTY. If funds requested exceed funds available, the balance 



Page 5 of 8 

 

of funds remaining will be divided equally based on the percentage of the allowable amounts 
claimed by all participating agencies.  

 
4. SIT PARTICIPATING AGENCIES 

 
A. The following  law enforcement agencies and personnel are allowed to participate in SIT: 

1) Arvin Police Department 
2) Bakersfield Police Department 
3) Bear Valley Police Department 
4) California City Police Department 
5) California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation, Division of Adult Parole Operations 
6) California Highway Patrol 
7) Delano Police Department 
8) Kern County District Attorney 
9) Kern County General Services, Parks and Recreation Division 
10) Kern County Probation Department 
11) Kern County Sheriff's Office 
12) Kern High School District Police Department 
13) McFarland Police Department 
14) Ridgecrest Police Department 
15) Shafter Police Department 
16) Stallion Springs Police Department 
17) Taft Police Department 
18) Tehachapi Police Department 
19) Wasco Police Department 

 
B. The following agencies are EXCLUDED from receiving SIT reimbursement but may still 

participate in SIT operations: 
1) California Department of Rehabilitation, Division of Adult Parole Operations 
2) California Highway Patrol 
3) Homeland Security Investigations 
 

C. Any agency discontinuing as a SIT member participating in this MOU shall be removed as a 
participating agency by amendment signed by the COUNTY and the agency being removed as a 
SIT member. Any agency being removed as a SIT member shall be entitled to reimbursement in 
accordance with this MOU up to and including the date, they notify the SIT Chairperson of their 
intent to discontinue participation in this SIT MOU. 
 

5. CRITICAL INCIDENTS 
 
In the event of a critical incident, the SIT Chairperson may authorize SIT activities to assist with 
containment. Reimbursement is dependent on funding availability and is limited to containment or the 
first seventy-two (72) hours of a critical incident, whichever occurs first. Costs incurred outside of the 



Page 6 of 8 

 

parameters set forth and agreed upon in this MOU are the responsibility of the requesting agency and 
not the COUNTY. 

 
6. MODIFICATIONS, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING 
 
Modifications, additions, and/or deletions to this MOU shall be accomplished by a mutually agreeable 
amendment. The Chairperson shall present proposed amendments to the Community Corrections 
Partnership (CCP) for approval as it pertains to AB 109 activities. Upon approval, CCP Chairperson shall 
submit amendments to the Board of Supervisors for final approval and execution.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Remainder of page intentionally left blank.



Page 7 of 8 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have agreed for itself, its employees, and officers, partners, and 
successors, to be fully bound by all terms and conditions of this MOU. 
 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
Kern County Probation Department 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief William P. Dickinson 
Chief Probation Officer 
Chairman, Community Corrections Partnership                                           

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Office of County Counsel 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Christina J. Oleson, Deputy 
 
 
SIT PARTICIPATING AGENCIES: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Alex Ghazalpour 
Arvin Police Department 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Greg Terry 
Bakersfield Police Department 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Dan Suttles 
Bear Valley Springs Police Department 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Jesse Hightower 
California City Police Department 

COUNTY OF KERN     
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
“COUNTY” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Steven Wheeler, District Administrator 
California Department of Corrections and 
Rehabilitation 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Captain Vincente Pagano 
California Highway Patrol 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Interim Chief Jerry Nicholson 
Delano Police Department 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Cynthia Zimmer 
Kern County District Attorney



Page 8 of 8 

 

 
_____________________________________ 
Geoffrey Hill, Chief General Services Officer 
Kern County General Services Division 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sheriff Donny Youngblood 
Kern County Sheriff’s Office 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Ed Komin 
Kern High School District Police Department 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Brian Knox 
McFarland Police Department 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Interim Chief Michael Scott 
Ridgecrest Police Department 

 

 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Kevin Zimmermann 
Shafter Police Department 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Gary Crowell 
Stallion Springs Police Department 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Damon McMinn 
Taft Police Department  
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Richard Standridge 
Tehachapi Police Department 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chief Charlie Fivecoat 
Wasco Police Department 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Remainder of page intentionally left blank. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 





AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) 

TO: Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/ 
Executive Committee 
C/o Kern County Probation Department 
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309 
Bakersfield, CA 93385 

FROM:  David Stephens, Chief Deputy 
Kern County Sheriff’s Office  

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections 
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of September 13, 2023: 

Tittle: REQUEST FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 CARRY FORWARD FUNDS 

Background: Request for Fiscal Year 2022/23 carry forward funds in the amount of 
$1,500,000 for the Sheriff’s Office new Jail Management System (JMS) 
and $136,696 for project management services for the JMS. 

Fiscal Impact: $1,636,696

 Recommendation/ Request Approval of FY 2022/23 Carry Forward Funds 
Action to be Taken MAKE PRESENTATION; DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

_  ___
David Stephens, Chief Deputy 
Kern County Sheriff’s Office  





AGENDA ITEM REQUEST
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)

TO:  Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/
Executive Committee
C/o Kern County Probation Department
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309
Bakersfield, CA 93385

FROM:  Stacy Kuwahara, Director
  Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services (KernBHRS)

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections 
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of September 13, 2023: 

Title:   Request to Carry Forward FY 2022/23 Growth Funds

Background:  KernBHRS has contracted with Telecare to operate the Recovery Station 
located on Kentucky Street in East Bakersfield since FY 2019-20 and has 
used Mental Health Services Act Innovation Funding to pay for the services. 
While the use of this funding source has allowed KernBHRS to bring a vital 
service to the community, it has a limited life span of five years.  Knowing 
that the funding was ending, on December 14, 2022, your board awarded 
KernBHRS $1,650,000 of FY 2022/23 one-time AB109 growth funds.
$1,500,000 of these funds were dedicated to operating the Bakersfield 
Recovery Station.  KernBHRS to carry forward these growth funds to fiscal 
year 2024-25 when the Mental Health Services Act Innovation Funding will 
no longer be a source of funding.

Fiscal Impact: $1,500,000.00

Recommendation/
Action to be Taken: Approve requested Carry Forward of Growth Funds to utilized sustain

operations of the Recovery Station for FY 2024-25.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Stacy Kuwahara, LMFT, Director 
Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services



TO: 

FROM: 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) 

Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/ 
Executive Committee 
Clo Kern County Probation Department 
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309 
Bakersfield, CA 93385 

Aaron Ellis, Chief Workforce Development Officer, 
Employers' Training Resource 

Submitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections 
Partnership (CCP) at the meeting of September 13, 2023: 

[Title:] 

[Background:] 

REQUEST FOR ALLOCATION OF CARRY FORWARD FUNDS (AB 
109 BASE) FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 

ETR ended Fiscal Year 2022-23 with $316,848 in unexpended AB 
109 Base Funds. 

Improved collaboration with partners has generated a significant 
increase in referrals and enrollments. However, participants who need 
more than basic assistance need more places to "land". We have 
obligated nearly $500,000 in Growth Funds to Paid Work Experience 
(PWEX) and more than $270,000 in new Base Funds to support 
training and supportive services. We recently expanded the AB 109 
T earn to dedicate more staff to the development of work sites for 
PWEX and On-the-Job Training opportunities while continuing to 
maintain teaching schedules at Lerdo, work-readiness and other pre­
employment and training activities. 

This request includes $257,488 in additional staff costs, $58,600 for 
additional participant training opportunities and supportive services, 
and $760 in travel and supplies. 

[Fiscal Impact:] $316,848 

[Recommendation/ 
Action to be Taken:] Request approval from the CCP to utilize the Carry Forward balance 

of $316,848 in AB 109 Base Funds to cover $257,488 in additional 
staff costs, $55,600 in additional participant training funds, $3,000 for 
additional supportive serv· es, $600 in additional travel and $160 for 
additional supplies. ✓L--- (¼__ 

Aaron Ellis, Chief Workforce Development Officer 



TO: 

FROM: 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST 
Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) 

Community Corrections Partnership (CCP)/ 
Executive Committee 
C/O Kern County Probation Department 
2005 Ridge Rd, P.O. Box 3309 
Bakersfield, CA 93385 

Chief Michael Scott, Interim Chief of Police 
Ridgecrest Police Department 

Su.bmitted are the following agenda item(s) to be considered by the Community Corrections Partnership 
(CCP) at the meeting of September 13, 2023: 

Title: 

Background: 

Fiscal Impact: 

Recommendation/ 
Action to be Taken: 

STREET INTERDICTION TEAM (SIT) REQUEST FOR ALLOCATION OF 
CARRYFORWARD FUNDS FOR FY 2023/24 

SIT is requesting carryforward funds for FY 2023/24 in the amount of 
$567,552.59. Due to major understaffing within SIT participating agencies, the 
amount of SIT operations was reduced. A proposed SIT MOU will be placed to 
include all personnel from each participating agency eligible to assist in SIT 
duties. Funds will be used to increase the number of front-line operations in FY 
2023/24. 

$567,552.59 

MAKE PRESENTATION; DISCUSS; MAKE RECOMMENDATION TO 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE TO APPROVE CARRYFORWARD FUNDS 
ALLOCATION REQUEST 

Chief Michael Scott, Interim Chief of Police 
Ridgecrest Police Department 


	CCP-Agenda-Packet-09-03-23-F-2
	#0 - CCP Meeting Agenda 09-13-23
	#1 - CCP Meeting Minutes 06-07-23
	#5 - Data Trackers FY 22-23 Qtr 4
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 22-23 - Q4 KCSO
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 22-23 - Q4 KCPD
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 22-23 - Q4 BHRS
	AB 109 Data Trackers FY 22-23 - Q4 DA
	AB 109 Data Tracker FY 22-23 - Q4 CBO
	AB 109 Data Tracker FY 22-23 - Q4 PD
	AB 109 Data Tracker FY 22-23 - Q4 ETR
	AB 109 Data Tracker FY 22-23 - Q4 SIT
	Data tracker slide 4th qtr 22-23

	#6 - SIT Proposed MOU
	Proposed MOU Agenda Item


	Proposed SIT MOU
	CCP-Agenda-Packet-09-03-23-F-2
	#8 - Request for Short-Term Funding
	#9 - Carryforward Requests




